



NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
CITY CENTRE FORUM

Date: Monday 23 November 2015

Time: 3.30 pm

Place: LB 31-32 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG

Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following business

Corporate Director for Resilience

Governance Officer: Laura Wilson **Direct Dial:** 0115 8764301

AGENDA

Pages

- | | | |
|----------|---|--------------|
| 1 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE | |
| 2 | DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS | |
| 3 | MINUTES
Last meeting held on 28 September 2015 (for confirmation) | 3 - 8 |
| 4 | PUBLIC WIFI IN NOTTINGHAM
Presentation by John Connelly, Digital Infrastructure Manager,
Nottingham City Council | |
| 5 | GOOD TO GREAT: CREATIVE LIGHTING
Presentation by Eddie Curry, Head of Parks and Open Spaces,
Nottingham City Council, and Sharon Scaniglia, Principal Arts Officer,
Nottingham City Council | |

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL'S POLICY ON RECORDING AND REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN ADVANCE.

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

CITY CENTRE FORUM

MINUTES of the meeting held at LB 31-32 - Loxley House, Nottingham on 28 September 2015 from 3.35pm - 5.03pm

Membership

Present

Councillor Michael Edwards (Chair)
Jeff Allen (Vice Chair)
Councillor Jim Armstrong
Councillor Brian Grocock
Councillor Anne Peach
Chris Sinclair
Tom Waldron-Lynch

Absent

Janine Bone
Councillor Merlita Bryan
Councillor Chris Gibson
Simon Gray
Councillor Nicola Heaton
Councillor Dave Liversidge
Councillor Nick McDonald
Councillor David Mellen
Inspector Shaun Ostle
Steve Pashley
Jennifer Spencer
Councillor Jane Urquhart

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:

Jonathan Allington - Trader, Station Street
Wasim Amin - Secretary, Unite the Union – Notts Hackney Cabs
Kaleem Ashraf - Unite the Union
John Bann - Cycling and Roadspace Transformation Manager
Mark Ceylon - GOODF
Lisa Jones - National Federation of the Blind, Nottingham Branch
Basheer A Latif - Notts Hackney Association
Jennifer Lewis - Communications & Marketing Project Manager
Catherine Mayhew - City Centre Coordinator
Chander Sood - Notts Hackney Federation
Phil Wye - Constitutional Services Officer

7 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Nicola Heaton - other council business
Councillor Nick McDonald – other council business
Janine Bone
Steve Pashley
Jennifer Spencer
Adam Tamsett
Nigel Wheatley

8 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

None.

9 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2015 were confirmed and signed by the chair, with an additional note that Councillor Brian Grocock gave his apologies for the meeting as he was on other council business.

10 PUBLIC WIFI IN NOTTINGHAM

John Connelly, Digital Infrastructure Manager, was unavailable to deliver the presentation as he was unwell.

RESOLVED to hear the presentation at the next meeting of the Forum on 23 November 2015

11 NOTTINGHAM OCTOBER - UK FESTIVAL CITY

Jennifer Lewis, Communications and Marketing Project Manager, gave a presentation, highlighting the following:

- (a) this project is a part of the council's Good to Great initiative, and aims to attract more overnight visitors to Nottingham and help increase the visitor economy to £1 billion by 2020;
- (b) Nottingham already has a successful events offer locally, so the aim of this project is to profile the city and better promote its offer nationally, using effective partnership working with other organisations such as Experience Nottinghamshire;
- (c) the £120,000 project aims to make Nottingham the primary visitor destination in October for 2015 and 2016. Investment has gone into the following events, which are both established and new events:
 - Goose Fair;
 - Spiegel Tent – music/drama/comedy/cabaret;
 - Robin Hood Beer and Cider Festival;
 - International Microfilm Festival;
 - Hockley Hustle;
 - Oktoberfest;
 - Robin Hood Festival Week;
 - Robin Hood Pageant;
 - GameCity;
 - Nottingham Fringe Festival;
 - Nottingham Canal Festival;
- (d) a national press and radio campaign has been undertaken, with adverts in six national newspapers, adverts on four radio stations and a competition. Advertising has been targeted at regions that would need an overnight stay in Nottingham, and insight from Visit England has been used. Social media has also been used to promote the campaign on Facebook, Twitter and Google.

Jennifer gave the following responses in answer to questions from the Committee:

- (e) a problem in the past has been encouraging visitors to stay overnight in Nottingham. This has been addressed by packaging the events so that visitors will stay to attend more than one and build an itinerary;
- (f) the Spiegel Tent, a new attraction, is a Victorian construction in Old Market Square which will host a variety of events. It has already gained a lot of interest on social media;
- (g) the microfilm festival is more of a niche event, but is an area that is gaining interest internationally with hopes to expand into a larger event in future years;
- (h) the council has strong links with the universities and promotional materials have been sent out to students. Events in Nottingham have a history of high student turnout;
- (i) the funding for the scheme will cover two years, followed by an evaluation of its success. The aim is to make Nottingham October a part of the city's culture.

RESOLVED to thank Jennifer for the presentation

12 IMPROVEMENTS TO STATION STREET

John Bann, Cycling and Roadspace Transformation Manager, gave a presentation on the planned public realm improvement and traffic management scheme on Station Street, highlighting the following:

- (a) Nottingham Station is one of the main gateways to the city with high levels of pedestrian footfall which is predicted to increase substantially in the future. The current pedestrian facilities along Station Street and Carrington Street are poor quality and this proposed scheme would create an improved environment for pedestrians and cyclists, and help to regenerate the street;
- (b) pedestrianisation of the street fits within the council's aspiration to create high quality public realm in the Nottingham City Centre Time and Place Plan, and also fits with the heritage streetscape proposals planned for Carrington Street. It should also encourage economic growth in the Southside regeneration area and wider regeneration in the Creative Quarter;
- (c) pedestrians will be given priority in Station Street, between Trent Street and Carrington Street, however access will be maintained for car parks and for servicing of businesses by permit;
- (d) the redeveloped space will include new trees, lighting and space for pavement cafes and pop-up stalls;
- (e) the proposal for the taxi rank which is currently in Station Street is to move the main rank to the second floor of the station's multi-storey car-park, whilst maintaining a secondary rank by the side access to the station in Station Street,

with a feeder rank in Trent Street. The drop off location will remain on Queens Road;

- (f) an alternative proposal has been put forward by taxi drivers and their representatives which would continue the use of the whole of Station Street as a taxi rank;
- (g) no vehicles will be permitted to enter Station Street from London Road, creating a one-way gyratory system from Canal Street along Trent Street and Station Street to London Road;
- (h) there is an ambition to improve the public realm in Carrington Street in the future, but there are no firm plans at the moment to how this will look.

John gave the following responses in answer to questions from the Committee and members of the public:

- (i) pedestrianisation was chosen for Station Street as it fits with the council's City Centre Time and Place plan to regenerate the area and provide a better environment for those arriving at the station. Most UK cities now discourage cars from city centre streets;
- (j) whilst the new location for the taxi rank in the multi-storey carpark will be slightly further away than its current location, there will be an all-weather, level route to taxis from platforms which will be an improvement for the disabled and elderly;
- (k) Trent Street is likely to become a more important route through to the city centre and the lace market, with the development of the skills hub on Canal Street;
- (l) a final decision on the location of the taxi rank has not yet been made by the Portfolio Holder for Jobs, Growth and Transport , and any alternative proposals will be taken into account before this is made;
- (m) the length of taxi journeys from the station vary depending on destination. For destinations to the south of the city journey times will be reduced from the new taxi rank;
- (n) future plans for Carrington Street are only ideas at the moment and no firm decision has been made. The impact on bus routes and people with mobility issues will be taken into account when these are finalised;
- (o) following discussions with disability groups, the proposed scheme has been altered from a shared space to include drop kerbs and tactile pavements along both sides of Station Street. It is not felt that a pedestrian crossing is needed at the junction of Station Street and Trent Street as the levels of traffic will be low;
- (p) the purpose of the scheme is not discourage traffic coming into the city as Station Street is currently closed at the Carrington Street end to traffic anyway.

RESOLVED to

- (1) thank John for the presentation;**
- (2) note the Committee's belief that there has been insufficient assessment of the impact on arrival of train passengers to find and reach the new taxi rank;**
- (3) note the Committee's belief that there is a lack of weight of the argument for economic development compared to the impact of the scheme on the taxi service;**
- (4) note the Committee's concerns regarding the impact on bus routes following any future redevelopment of Carrington Street.**

This page is intentionally left blank